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The Company, Sintercom, was established in 2007 and started 

commercial production in 2010. Starting with the supplies of 

stainless steel hego boss products, today, Sintercom is the 

one of the leader in manufacturing of sintered synchro hubs 

in India. Sintercom specialises in manufacturing of medium 

to high density sintered components for automotive engines, 

powertrain and exhaust applications for esteemed customers.

Sintercom provides its customers with high-volume, high-

precision and low-cost components, tailored to their specific 

requirements. This is ensured by leveraging the integrated 

manufacturing facility adhering to rigorous quality standards. 

The engineering and development centre, and a well-

equipped, in-house quality lab, help us achieve these goals 

better.

The company believes in adding value to their customer’s 

business and always puts their needs in focus.

Introduction



•  2007: Set up as a joint venture between BRN Industries and Maxtech Manufacturing Inc. as MSPPL

•  2008: BRN Acquires MMI’s stake in MSPPL

•  2011: MIBA Group forms a Joint Venture with MSPPL

•  2012: Renamed as Sintercom India Private Limited with ISO 14001:2004 Certification

•  2013: Started Product Supply to Maruti Suzuki India Ltd.

•  2015: Appreciated by Maruti Suzuki India Ltd. for Design and Development

•  2018: SIL Listed on NSE Emerge

Brief History of
Sintercom India Limited
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•  Global leadership in sintering business by providing innovation technology for processes & people

•  Increase sinter component leverage in automobile up to 10 kgs. per vehicle

•  Improve the material yield using sintering technology

•  Improve awareness about the sintering technology in Indian manufacturing industries

•  Proven capability in producing medium to high density sintered parts

•  Fully integrated manufacturing facility

•  Adhering to superior quality standards	

•  Focus on automotive components and drivetrain parts

•  In-house R&D and tool development

•  Broad portfolio of sintered components and materials, including stainless steel parts

Vision and Mission

Strength of The Company



To Our Shareholders,

I am pleased to report that we delivered superior performance for our customers and solid results for our 

shareholders in fiscal year 2018 – 2019.   Despite quickly changing industry conditions in the second half 

of the year, our team stayed focused and continued to execute on our long term strategy for profitable 

growth.  As we begin our second year as a publicly traded company, our investments, technology 

collaborations and team expertise are aligned and support Sintercom’s vision of global leadership in the 

sintering business through innovation and technology. 

The global automotive industry began 2019 with most regions facing significant challenges driven by 

macro factors negatively impacting industry demand. China is experiencing its first decline in vehicle 

sales in more than 20 years. The North America market grew marginally and the ongoing impact from 

Brexit and US-China trade tensions are disrupting regional economies. In this challenging environment, I 

am proud of how Sintercom has improved its position and performance in the Indian automotive industry 

during the last year.

Changing Industry Landscape 

This is an exciting time to be a part of the global automotive industry. Unprecedented technological changes 

are redefining mobility and transforming our industry through digital platforms, alternate powertrain and 

propulsion technologies and rapidly changing consumer and customer sentiments that are shaping ride 

sharing and commercial activities.  

Original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) and new industry players are all participating and driving these 

dynamic changes.  Sintercom is well positioned to support their increasingly complex requirements with 

our outstanding product and technology offerings.   

India is also playing a key role this global industry transformation with several trends radically changing 

India’s automotive industry over the next several years. Global technologies are under development 

Hari Nair, Chairman

Thoughts from
the Chairman

Sintercom is delivering 

innovative solutions 

to our customers that 

support their top priorities 

including energy efficiency 

and sustainability. 

‘‘

‘‘
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simultaneously in India, driven by consumer demand, rising incomes and to a certain extent, environmental 

regulations. Ride-sharing and delivery services are common in most cities with the ultimate market 

potential driven by developments in digital platforms that are expected to be much larger than in more 

developed markets. 

Future Growth Fueled by Innovation and Technology

As our industry evolves, Sintercom is delivering innovative solutions to our customers that support their 

top priorities including energy efficiency and sustainability.   In doing so, we have demonstrated our ability 

to counter  the effects of short term market dynamics while remaining focused on meeting and exceeding 

our customer needs. 

We continue to make significant progress on designing, developing and manufacturing advanced 

technology solutions that support our customers’ increasingly complex requirements.  We are strengthening 

our product and process technology capabilities as we expand our portfolio to serve the fast-growing 

commercial vehicle segment. We are also pursuing new opportunities in the white goods sector, which 

offers significant growth for our existing product range and its inherent competitive advantages versus 

traditional offerings. 

Looking Forward

According to industry predictions, overall global industry production in the major markets could further 

soften in the second half of 2019 but remain relatively healthy. For the second half of 2019, global light-

vehicle production is expected to be relatively flat or decline by about 3% depending on the extent of 

the impact from external factors such as Brexit and China trade concerns. The effects of these and other 

industry issues are expected to have a continued impact in 2020. 

Despite short-term industry challenges, I am optimistic about the medium and long-term outlook for 

the automotive sector and for Sintercom.  India’s growth story continues to be driven by its powerful 

youth demographics, ongoing market reforms and lifestyle aspirations supported by steady prosperity 

and rising incomes.

Sharing Our Success

On behalf of the entire Sintercom team, we are grateful for the support of our shareholders as we continue 

our growth journey. I also appreciate our employees who every day demonstrate their commitment to 

delighting our customers, strengthening our technology portfolio, solidifying our market position and 

being responsible to our communities.  Finally, I thank our customers for placing their trust on Sintercom, 

knowing that we are dedicated of meeting their expectations and committed to their success.  

The entire leadership team is committed for preparing Sintercom for new opportunities, which are driving 

our strategic decisions in the businesses where we compete, where we invest and the regions where we 

operate to achieve the ideal balance for long-term growth.  

We take pride in what we have accomplished, but are even more excited about the road ahead with 

decisions and actions that will always be grounded in creating higher value for our shareholders and 

customers.

Hari N. Nair 
Chairman



Dear Shareholders,

The Indian automobile sector in FY 2018-19 faced a number of challenges that affected its growth. The 

inability of a large non-banking finance company to meet its liabilities resulted in a liquidity squeeze 

affecting automobile off-take in the latter part of the financial year from November, 2018 onwards. 

The cost of vehicle insurance and sales cost increased, consequently affecting the sectoral mood. Besides, 

there was also an uncertainty on the outcome of the 2019 general elections in the Country. All these added 

to the burden of the overall consumer sentiment, which continued to be depressed through the rest of 

the financial year. Post second half, the auto and consumption stories seem to be tumbling like a pack of 

cards and macro factors are at the very core of this issue. Lack of sufficient liquidity to buy consumption 

products on credit or EMI and the changing dynamics in the auto space from internal combustion to 

electric are all adding uncertainty to the already grieving economy.

The industry produced a total 30.91 million vehicles including passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, 

three wheelers, two wheelers and quadricycle in April-March 2019 as against 29.09 million in April-March 

2018, registering a growth of 6.26 percent over the same period last year. Two-wheelers dominate the 

industry and made up 81 per cent share in the domestic automobile sales in FY19.

The Company is able to focus on deepening its existing customer relationships and provide superior 

price-value proposition due to superior product quality, timely product delivery, competitive pricing and 

ramped up capacities.

Jignesh Raval, Managing Director

The way ahead
with MD

The Company is able to 

focus on providing superior 

price-value proposition 

due to superior product 

quality, competitive pricing 

and ramped up capacities. 
‘‘

‘‘
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New Technologies:

Your Company continues to do what we have been doing the best – providing innovative solutions to the 
customers. During the year, we can proudly say that we have developed zero backlash gears for one of 

our customers. One of the first player in the Indian sintered industry to develop this technology with the 

support from Miba R & D center. This technology will give new dimensions to the current product portfolio 

and will bring us one step closer to our strategy of being the leaders in this technology in India. 

 

Company Performance:

For the financial year 2018-2019, your Company recorded net sales of Rs. 832 million as against Rs. 746.2 

million in the previous year and thereby recorded growth of 11.36% in the net sales. Despite the headwinds 

faced by the auto ancillary industry, Company was able to achieve double digit growth during the financial 

year.

For the financial year 2018-2019, the Company achieved Profit before tax of Rs. 76.39 million as against Rs. 

65.95 million for previous financial year and thereby recording a growth of 15.83%. Inspite of the challenging 

times in the second half of the financial year 2018-2019, the company has been able to maintain its profit 

margins. 

New Business wins:

Your company has successfully bagged bearing caps business for K 10 engine (Petrol) of Maruti Suzuki. 

Your company is also closely working with various other OEM’s for conversion of components from forged/

cast iron to sintered in the segments of commercial vehicle and passenger vehicle segments. 

On behalf of the Board, I take this opportunity to thank our shareholders for their unflinching support 

and also thank our employees for their dedicated efforts. We stand firm in our commitment to achieve a 

sustainable growth and deliver value to all our stakeholders.

Jignesh Raval
Managing Director



Corporate Information
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   M/s. Kirtane & Pandit LLP, Chartered Accountants 

Secretarial Auditor

M/s. Kanj & Co. LLP, Company Secretaries
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   Name of the Director				    Nature of Directorship

   Mr. Hari Nair                  			   Chairman, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director 
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   Mr. Madan Godse            			   Independent Director

   Ms. Preeti Ramdasi       			   Independent Director
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Composition of Committees Of Board of Sintercom India Limited

Share Transfer Agent
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Email:- pune@linkintime.co.in 

Registered Office
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CIN. L29299PN2007PLC129627

HDFC Bank Limited, Pune
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   Name of the Director	 Status in Committee	 Nature of Directorship

   Mr. Hari Nair	 Chairman	 Non-Executive Director and Chairman

   Mr. Jignesh Raval	 Member	 Managing Director

   Mr. Madan Godse	 Member	 Independent Director

   Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

   Name of the Director	 Status in Committee	 Nature of Directorship

   Ms. Preeti Ramdasi	 Chairman	 Independent Director

   Mr. Hari Nair	 Member	 Non-Executive Director and Chairman

   Mr. Jignesh Raval	 Member	 Managing Director

   Mr. Harald Neubert	 Member	 Non-Executive Non Independent Director
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Fostering team spirit through 
multiple thoughtful activities 

Saluting the 
women employees 
at Sintercom 
on the occasion 
of International 
Women’s Day

Fostering 
team spirit and 
competitiveness 
through multiple 
sports activities
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AGM Notice

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 12th Annual General Meeting of the members of Sintercom India Limited 

will be held on Thursday, 05th September, 2019 at 04.30 pm (IST) at Hotel Orritel, Survey No.135, Opposite 

Talegaon MIDC Junction, Old Mumbai Pune Highway, Vadgaon, Pune, Maharashtra 412106 to transact 

following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 

Year ended 31st March, 2019 together with Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon;

	 “RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2019 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be 

and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2.	 To appoint Mr. Harald Neubert (DIN 03446380), who retire by rotation and being eligible, offer 

himself for re-appointment as a Director

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Harald 

Neubert (DIN 03446380), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered 

himself for re-appointment and be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to 

retire by rotation.”

3.	 To ratify the Appointment of Statutory Auditors;

	 “RESOLVED THAT in terms of the provisions of Sections 139-142 and other applicable provisions, 

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder , M/s. Kirtane & Pandit , Chartered 

Accountants (Firm’s Registration Number: 105215W) be and are hereby appointed as Auditors of the 

Company, to hold office for a period of five consecutive years commencing from the Financial year 

2017-18 at such remuneration as may be fixed by the Managing Director of the Company.”



SPECIAL BUSINESS
4.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) , the following resolution as 

Special Resolution: 

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 196, 197 and 203 read with other applicable 

provisions and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Articles of Association 

of the Company and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 and subject to such other approvals as may be necessary, the approval of the Members be and 

hereby accorded for the payment of the excess remuneration to Mr. Jignesh Raval (DIN: 01591000), 

Managing Director, for the remaining period of two years viz., from 01st Jan, 2019  to 31st Dec, 2020 

has been ratified by the Shareholders as mentioned under;

A.	 Annual Salary: (Amount in Rs.)

*The annual increment will be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

B.	 Perquisites: 
	 •	 Company provide car for official use with Driver;

	 •	 Personal Accident Policy for the Managing Director & his family;

	 •	 Group Mediclaim policy for Managing Director and his family;

	 •	 Contribution to Provident Fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these either 

		  singly or put together or not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

	 •	 Gratuity as per applicable laws;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director shall perform such duties and services as shall from 

time to time be entrusted to him including the powers exercisable by the Board under the Articles of 

Association of the Company and shall undertake to use his best endeavours to promote the interests of 

the Company and comply with such orders and directions as may be given to him by the Board from time 

to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during such time as Mr. Jignesh Raval holds and continues to hold office of 

Managing Director of the Company, he shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary be and are hereby 

authorised to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

For Sintercom India Limited 

Anuja Joshi	
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Date: 10th May, 2019

Place: Pune
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Notes: 

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY OR 

PROXIES TO ATTEND AND, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 

OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50 

(FIFTY) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 

OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL 

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS 

PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER SHAREHOLDER.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the 

Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxy form submitted on behalf of the Companies, Societies, etc. must be 

supported by an appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable.

1.	 Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015 the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

Saturday, 31st August, 2019 to Thursday, 05th September, 2019 (both days inclusive);

2.	 Rule 3 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 mandates that the register 

of members of all companies should include details pertaining to email address, permanent account 

number (PAN) or CIN, unique identification number, if any; father’s/ mother’s/ spouse’s name, 

occupation, status, nationality; in case member is a minor, name of guardian and the date of birth of 

the member, and name and address of nominee. All members are requested to update their details 

as aforesaid with their respective depository.

3.	 Members/proxies should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending the Meeting.

4.	 All members are requested to support Green Initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government 

of India and register their email addresses to receive all these documents electronically from the 

Company in accordance with Rule 18 of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules 2014 

and Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. All the aforesaid documents have been uploaded 

on and are available for download from the Company’s website, being www.sintercom.co.in kindly 

bring your copy of Annual Report to the meeting.

5.	 Members desiring any information on accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 10 

days before the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready for reply.

6.	 Electronic copy of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with Annual Report inter-alia, 

including proxy form and attendance slip is being sent to all the shareholders whose name appears 

in the prelist furnished by NSDL and CDSL as Beneficial Owner as on 09th August, 2019 at the email 

id’s registered with the Company/ RTA / DP for communication purposes. For those shareholders 

whose name stand registered in the Register of Members as on 09th August, 2019 and who have not 

registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting along 

with Annual Report inter-alia, including proxy form and attendance slip is being send to them in the 

permitted mode. We request you to update, your email address with your depository participant to 

ensure that the annual report and other documents reach you in permitted mode.

7.	 Every member entitled to vote at a meeting of the company, or on any resolution to be moved 



thereat, shall be entitled during the period beginning twenty-four hours before the time fixed for the 

commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, to inspect the proxies 

lodged, at any time during the business hours of the company, provided not less than three days’ 

notice in writing of the intention so to inspect is given to the company.

8.	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives under Section 113 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing 

their representatives to attend and vote at the Meeting.

9.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the 

Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of 

this Notice. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard 

on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors 

seeking appointment/re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) is also annexed.

10.	 Members may note that the Notice of this meeting has been hosted under the Investor’s Tab of 

Company’s website www.sintercom.co.in 

11.	 All documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the 

Company during office hours from Monday to Friday upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of 

the Company.

12.	 Pursuant to the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules 20 and 21 of the 

Companies (Management & Administration) Rules 2014 and sub Reg. (1) & (2) of Reg. 44 of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is not required to provide mandatorily to its members the 

electronic facility to exercise their right to vote at the AGM. Therefore, in terms the provisions of 

section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, at any general meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the 

meeting shall, unless a poll is demanded under section 109 or the voting is carried out electronically, 

be decided on a show of hands. A declaration by the Chairman of the meeting of the passing of a 

resolution or otherwise by show of hands under sub-section (1) and an entry to that effect in the 

books containing the minutes of the meeting of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact 

of passing of such resolution or otherwise.

	 Every Member entitled to vote on a Resolution and present in person shall, on a show of hands, have 

only one vote irrespective of the number of shares held by him. A Proxy cannot vote on a show of 

hands.

	 In case of joint holders attending the Annual General Meeting, the Member whose name appears as 

the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitles 

to Vote.

	 A Member who is a related party is not entitled to vote on a Resolution relating to approval of any 

contract or arrangement in which such Member is a related party.

	 The Members of the Company holding shares on the “cut-off date” of 30th August, 2019 are entitled 

to vote on the resolutions proposed. Cut-off date means the date on which the right of voting of the 

members shall be reckoned and a person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat 

this notice for information purposes only.
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	 The results of the voting will be placed by the Company on its website www.sintercom.co.in within 

48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM and also communicated to the stock exchanges, where the 

shares of the Company are listed.

	 The resolutions proposed will be deemed to have been passed on the date of the AGM subject to the 

receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor of the resolutions.

13.	 The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the Annual General Meeting is annexed to 

this report as per requirement of Secretarial Standard -2 on General Meeting.

14.	 Pursuant to the requirement of the SEBI (Listing Regulations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 the 

Company declares that its equity shares are listed on the Stock Exchange at NSE-SME Platform.

15.	 The details of director’s appointment or re-appointment as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on 

General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India is as below:



Annexure to the Notice
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No. 3
Ratification of Appointment of Statutory Auditors M/s. Kirtane & Pandit, Chartered Accountant

This statement is provided though strictly not required as per Section 102 of the Act.

M/s. Kirtane & Pandit , Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration Number: 105215W) were appointed for a 

period of five consecutive years commencing from the Financial year 2017-18 subject to ratification of their 

appointment at every Annual General Meeting.  Whereas the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 read with 

Notification S.O. 1833(E) dated 7th May 2018 deletes provision of annual ratification of the appointment of 

auditor. In view of last resolution, the Company opts for final ratification of the appointment of the auditor 

of the company till his remaining term of appointment.

  

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or 

interested (financially or otherwise), in this resolution. The Board recommends this resolution for approval 

by the members

Item No. 4
Ratification of remuneration of Mr. Jignesh Raval, Managing Director

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 29th November, 2017 re-appointed Mr. Jignesh Raval (DIN 

01591000) as Managing Director of the Company with effect from 01st January, 2018 for a period of five 

years subject to approval of the shareholders and an agreement has been entered into by the Company 

with each of the Managing Director on 29th November, 2017. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the provisions of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 

2017 (CA Amendment Act), relating to managerial remuneration, which are now in force with effect from 

12 September 2018.

By way of a notification, the amendments to Section 197 and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (CA 

2013) have been brought into effect. The requirement of seeking approval of the Central Government for 

the payment of managerial remuneration in excess of limits stipulated for public companies has now been 

removed and hence the resolution with respect to remuneration was required to be ratified within one year 

from the date of notification.

The main terms and conditions of appointment of the Managing Director, as contained in the respective 

agreement dated 29th November, 2017 is furnished below and the remuneration for the year 2019 and 

2020 ratified by the members of the Company: 
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A.	 Term of appointment: - Five years with effect from 01st January, 2018

B.	 Salary: (Amount in Rs.)

*The annual increment will be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

C.	 Perquisites: 
	 •	 Company provide car for official use with Driver;

	 •	 Personal Accident Policy for the Managing Director & his family;

	 •	 Group Mediclaim policy for Managing Director and his family;

	 •	 Contribution to Provident Fund, superannuation fund or annuity fund to the extent these

		  either singly or put together or not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

	 •	 Gratuity as per applicable laws;

D.	 Minimum Remuneration: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if in any Financial Year during the currency of the tenure of the Managing 

Director the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the remuneration will be subject to the 

Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

E.	 Sitting Fees
The Managing Director shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meeting of Board of Directors 

or committee

The following additional detailed information as per Section – II of Schedule V is as follows:



Except Mr. Jignesh Raval none of the other Directors or key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives 

are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in these Resolutions. 

The board recommended this resolution for approval by the members.

For Sintercom India Limited 

Anuja Joshi	
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Date: 10th May, 2019

Place: Pune



SINTERCOM INDIA LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 25

Sintercom India Limited
CIN: L29299PN2007PLC129627

GAT NO.127, AT POST MANGRUL, TALUKA MAVAL (TALEGAON DABHADE) PUNE MH 410507 IN

 

12th Annual General Meeting
Sintercom India Limited

To be held on Thursday, 05th September, 2019 at 04.30 pm (IST) at Hotel Orritel, Survey No.135, Opposite 

Talegaon MIDC Junction, Old Mumbai Pune Highway, Vadgaon, Pune, Maharashtra 412106

���I hereby record my presence at the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 

05th September, 2019 at 04.30 pm (IST) at Hotel Orritel, Survey No.135, Opposite Talegaon MIDC Junction, 

Old Mumbai Pune Highway, Vadgaon, Pune, Maharashtra 412106

__________________________________		  __________________________________

Shareholder’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters                                  Shareholder’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note: Shareholders wishing to attend the meeting must bring the attendance slip, duly signed to the 

meeting and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.

Regd. Folio / DP ID & Client ID�

���No of Shares held

���Name of the Joint Holder(s)

Name and Address of the Member / Proxy

Attendance Slip



Tree plantation drive for 
a greener tomorrow
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What can be a better 

contribution to the environment 

than planting trees that 

nurture and make our planet 

a happier place. At Sintercom 

we managed to have a small 

tree-plantation drive on World 

Environment Day, on the 5th 

of June 2019. We planted 

saplings together! Along with 

a meaningful initiative for 

the World Environment Day, 

Sintercom is proud to have 

made this small contribution to 

making the world a little more 

greener! It was a delightful 

experience with the added 

enthusiasm of our people!



Board’s Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting before you the Twelfth Annual Report of the Company along 

with audited annual financial statement for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019. Further, in 

compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has made all requisite disclosures in the Board 

Report with the objective of accountability and transparency in its operations and to make you aware 

about its performance and future perspective.

1. Financial Results:
The Company’s performance during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 as compared to the previous 

financial years is summarized as below: 

2. Operational Performance:
For the financial year 2018-2019, your Company recorded net sales of Rs. 832 million as against Rs. 746.2 

million in the previous year and thereby recorded growth of 11.36% in the net sales. Despite the headwinds 

faced by the auto ancillary industry, Company was able to achieve double digit growth during the financial 

year.
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For the financial year 2018-2019, the Company achieved Profit before tax of Rs. 76.39 million as against Rs. 

65.95 million for previous financial year and thereby recording a growth of 15.83%. Inspite of the challenging 

times in the second half of the financial year 2018-2019, the company has been able to maintain its profit 

margins. 

3. Industry Update & Future Outlook:
The automobile industry in India is world’s fourth largest, with the country currently being the world’s 4th 

largest manufacturer of cars and 7th largest manufacturer of commercial vehicles in 2018. 

The industry produced a total 30.91 million vehicles including passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, 

three wheelers, two wheelers and quadricycle in April-March 2019 as against 29.09 million in April-March 

2018, registering a growth of 6.26 percent over the same period last year. Two-wheelers dominate the 

industry and made up 81 per cent share in the domestic automobile sales in FY19.

 

The sale of Passenger Vehicles grew by 2.70 percent in April-March 2019 over the same period last year. 

Within the Passenger Vehicles, the sales of Passenger Cars, Utility Vehicle & Vans grew by 2.05 percent, 

2.08 percent and 13.10 percent respectively in April-March 2019 over the same period last year. The overall 

Commercial Vehicles segment registered a growth of 17.55 percent in April- March 2019 as compared to 

the same period last year. Medium & Heavy Commercial Vehicles (M&HCVs) increased by 14.66 percent 

and Light Commercial Vehicles grew by 19.46 percent in April-March 2019 over the same period last year.

Three Wheelers sales increased by 10.27 percent in April-March 2019 over the same period last year. Within 

the Three Wheelers, Passenger Carrier sales registered a growth of 10.62 percent and Goods Carrier grew 

by 8.75 percent in April-March 2019 over April-March 2018.

 

Two Wheelers sales registered a growth at 4.86 percent in April-March 2019 over April-March 2018. Within 

the Two Wheelers segment, Scooters declined by (-) 0.27 percent, whereas Motorcycles and Mopeds grew 

by 7.76 percent and 2.41 percent respectively in April-March 2019 over April-March 2018.

 

In April-March 2019, overall automobile exports grew by 14.50 percent. While Passenger Vehicles exports 

declined by (-) 9.64 percent, Commercial Vehicles, Three Wheelers and Two Wheelers registered a growth 

of 3.17 percent, 49.00 percent and 16.55 percent respectively in April-March 2019 over the same period last 

year.

4. Economic Environment: 
India took a few giant strides forward and became the sixth largest economy by sustaining growth rates 

higher than China, thereby earning the epaulette of being the fastest growing major economy in the world 

whereas the World output grew at 3.6 per cent and is projected to decline further to 3.30 per cent Although 

a 3.30 per cent global expansion is still reasonable, the outlook for many countries is very challenging, 

with considerable uncertainties in the short term, especially as advanced economy growth rates converge 

toward their modest, long term potential.

After a strong growth in 2017 and the first half of 2018, the economic activity slowed down notably in the 

second half of the financial year.  Fiscal 2018-19 belied expectations for most. For a period, which started 

with strong belief of robust economic growth ended on sub-optimal performance with GDP growth slid 

to 6.81 per cent in 2018-19. There is a more significant concern, India could be heading into economic 

slowdown. The same has been reiterated in the Monthly Economic Report of March 2019 released by 

the Ministry of Finance. The proximate factors responsible for this slowdown include declining growth 

of private consumption, tepid increase in fixed investment, and muted exports. On the supply side, the 

challenge is to reverse the slowdown in growth of agriculture sector and sustain the growth in industry. 



The International Monetary Fund (IMF) reduced India’s GDP growth forecast for 2019-20. They projected 

growth to pick up to 7.5 per cent in 2020, supported by the continued recovery of investment and robust 

consumption amid a more expansionary stance of monetary policy and some expected impetus from 

fiscal policy.

5. Quality and Information Security:
Our focus on quality, productivity and innovations has helped us deliver increased value to our customers. 

The Company is certified for IATF 16949: 2016 & ISO 14001: 2015 & ISO 45001: 2018 (Quality Management 

Systems)

6. Dividend:
With a view to provide cushion for any financial contingencies in the future and to strengthen the financial 

position of the Company, your Directors have decided not to recommend any dividend for the period 

under review.

7. Details of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures (JV) or Associate Companies (AC): 
The Company has no subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies.

8. Amounts proposed to be carried to any Reserves:
The company has not transferred any amount to the reserves during the Financial Year ended on 31st 

March, 2019.

9. Change in nature of business, if any, Details of significant orders passed by Regulators and Material 
Changes if any between the end of the Financial year 31st March,2019 of the Company and the date of 
the report:
As per the provisions of Rule 8 (5)(vii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 there is no material 

changes has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial 

statements relate and the date of the report, which is affecting the financial position of the Company.

10. Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
The Board of the Company comprises an optimum combination of executive and non-executive 

independent directors.

As on the date of this report, Board of Directors of the Company comprises of total five directors. The 

Composition of the Board of Directors is as under: 

Mr. Markus Hofer (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director) and Ms. Gopi Trivedi (Non- Executive 

Independent Director) resigned from Board w.e.f. 20th August, 2018.

Pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 1/3rd of the 

Directors are liable to retire by rotation and if eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. In the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting Mr. Harald Neubert director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and 

being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. 
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In pursuant to provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable rules and 

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the designated Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

of the Company as on 31st March, 2019 are as follows:

11. Number of Board Meetings held:
Total 4 (four) Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2018-19 as required u/s 134 (3) (b) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The intervening gap between two board meetings 

was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Secretarial Standard-1. The 

prescribed quorum was presented for all the Meetings.

•	 19th April, 2018;

•	 20th July, 2018;

•	 12th November, 2018;

•	 18th February, 2019

Attendance of Directors in the Board Meeting:

* Mr. Markus Hofer (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director) and Ms. Gopi Trivedi (Non- Executive 

Independent Director) resigned from Board w.e.f. 20th August, 2018.

12. Committees:
Presently, the Board has Four (4) Committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee which 

has been established as a part of the better corporate governance practices and is in compliance with the 

requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes:

Audit Committee:
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 29th November, 2017 constituted an Audit committee in 

compliance with the provision of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, meeting of Audit Committee were held on 19th April, 2018, 20th July, 2018 

and 12th November, 2018 the attendance record of the members of the committee are as follows:



All the recommendation made by the Audit Committee in the financial year 2018-19 were approved by the 

Board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 29th November, 2017 constituted a Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee in compliance with the provision of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on 19th 

April, 2018 and the attendance record of the members of the committee is as follows:

The salient features of the policy of Nomination & Remuneration Committee same has been disclosed 

under Annexure VI.

Stakeholder Relationship Committee:
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 29th November, 2017 constituted Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee in compliance with the provision of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee were held on 19th April, 

2018 and the attendance record of the members of the committee is as follows:

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19th April, 2018 constituted Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee in compliance with the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held on 18th 

February, 2019 and the attendance record of the members of the committee is as follows:
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Additional, during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 the Independent Directors held separate 

meeting on 18th February, 2019 in Compliance with requirement of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 25 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements).

13. Evaluation of Board of Directors, Committees and Individual Director:
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has set up formal mechanism to evaluate the performance 

of the Board of Directors as well as that its Committee and individual Directors, including Chairman of 

the Board, Key Managerial Personnel/ Senior Management etc. The exercise was carried out through 

an evaluation process covering aspects such as composition of the Board, experience competencies, 

government issues, attendances, specific duties etc. 

The performance of each of the non-independent directors (including chairman) was also evaluated by 

the independent directors at the separate meeting held of the Independent Directors of the Company. 

14. Declaration from Independent Directors:
During the year under review all Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria 

of independence as laid down under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

15. Corporate Governance:
Your Company is listed on Emerge SME platform of National Stock Exchange, by virtue of Regulation 15 

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the compliance with the 

Corporate Governance provisions as specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub- regulation 

(2) of regulation 46 and para (C), (D) and (E) of Schedule V are not applicable to the Company.  Hence 

Corporate Governance Report does not form the part of this Board Report. 

However, as per Para (F) of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 the Company do not have and is not required to have the Demat suspense account 

neither unclaimed suspense account. 

16. Management Discussion and Analysis Report:
Management Discussion & Analysis report for the year under review as stipulated under Regulation 34(2) 

(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 is annexed as Annexure I hereto and forms part of this Report. For sake of brevity the 

items covered in Board’s Report are not repeated in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

17. Code of Conduct:
The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct (“Code”) for Board Members, Managerial Personnel and for 



Senior Management Employees of the Company. This Code has been posted on the Company’s website 

at http://www.sintercom.co.in/investor-financial/corporate-governance.html All the Board Members and 

Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with this code.

The Board has also laid down a Code of Conduct for Independent Directors pursuant to Section 149(8) 

and Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 via terms and conditions for appointment of Independent 

Directors, which is a guide to professional conduct for Independent Directors and has been uploaded on 

the website of the Company at following web link:

http://www.sintercom.co.in/investor-financial/corporate-governance.html

18. Managerial Remuneration
Disclosures of the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration and 

other details as required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 

to time, are provided as “Annexure II”.

The details of remuneration paid to the Directors including the Managing Director of the Company are 

given in Form MGT-9 forming part of the Directors Report.

19. Particulars of Employee and Remuneration:
The Company has no employees, who is in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/- per month or Rs. 

1,02,00,000/- per annum and hence the Company is not required to give information under Sub rule 2 

and 3 of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

20. Risk Management:
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor, and mitigate various risks to key 

business set for the Company. As a part of Risk Management policy, the relevant parameters for protection 

of environment, safety of operations and health of people at work are monitored regularly.  

The Board does not foresee any risk which might threaten the existence of the Company.

21. Deposits:
The Company has not accepted any deposits under the provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, during the 

year under review and therefore details mentioned in Rule 8(5) (v) & (vi) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act is not required to be given.

22. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
Information required under section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given herein below:

	

A.	 Conservation of Energy					   
There is constant focus at all level in the organisation to conserve the energy and use it efficiently. 

This is also key to financial success, as energy is one of the important cost element of conversion 

cost. Your Company has been implementing short- and long-term actions to improve the energy 

efficiency as its commitment towards minimising the effects of factors of climate change. It has 

grounded mechanism to excel in this area. Regular review is conducted for evaluating the progress 

and effectiveness of various ongoing initiatives to reduce the energy consumption.
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	 Some of the initiatives undertaken by your Company to conserve energy includes:
	 •	 Timer added for Hot oil dipping machine to reduce the electrical consumption

	 •	 Replaced 40W tube light with 22W LED tube light on Final Inspection area

	 •	 Shift-wise monitoring to power off idle running equipment

	 •	 Use of energy-less roof turbine ventilators.

	 Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy
	 •	 Entered into agreement to purchase solar power with off-site solar power developer.

		

B.	 Technology Absorption					   
The Company has entered into Joint Venture agreement with M/s MIBA Sinter Holding Gmbh & Co 

KG, Austria. The Company has also entered into technology agreement with MIBA Austria. Under this 

agreement, the MIBA has transferred technology for development of high strength sinter hardened 

Synchro hub, Cam to Cam gears and Cam to Cam Backlash Gears. The plant has been designed 

to suit the said technology. The products using these technologies have demand in Indian market. 

The Company continuously run inhouse programs for product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitutions. The Company has also taken help of external consultants 

whenever required on these aspects. During the year under review, the Company incurred  

Rs. 52,35,515 /- on research and development.   

C.	 Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo:                                          
Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the foreign exchange outgo 

during the year in terms of actual outflows.

23. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): 
The report as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure VIII.

24.   Auditors:
•	 Statutory Auditor:

The Company at its Annual General Meeting held in the year 2017-18 appointed M/s. Kirtane & Pandit 

LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 105215W) as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company for a period of five years.  

The Notes on financial statements referred to in the Auditors report are self-explanatory and do not 

call for any further comments. The Auditors Report does not contain any qualification, reservation 

or adverse remark.

There is no incident of fraud requiring reporting by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013.



•	 Secretarial Auditor:
Pursuant to the Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Kanj & 

Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Pune to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. 

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 issued by Secretarial Auditor for the financial year ended 

on 31st March, 2019 is enclosed to this Report as “Annexure III”. The Secretarial Audit Report contain 

qualification and the company has given its comments on Auditors qualified opinion the details are 

mentioned hereunder:

Qualified Opinion (1)

The observation is self - explanatory. The Company is in process of filing these forms.

Qualified Opinion (2)

The Company has generally complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards in the Financial 

Year 2017-18.

•	 Internal Auditor:
In accordance with provision of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, 

your Company has appointed Ms. Anuja Joshi as the Internal Auditor of the Company for Financial 

Year 2018-19 and takes their suggestions and recommendation to improve and strengthen the internal 

control system.

25. Compliance with Secretarial Standard:
The Company has generally complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards in the Financial Year 

2018-19.

26. Directors Responsibility Statement:
Pursuant to the requirement of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors state that:

	

•	 that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year 31st March, 2019, the applicable 

Accounting Standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures;

•	 that they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company 

for the period;

•	 they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

•	 that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

•	 that they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively and;

•	 that they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 

internal financials controls are adequate and are operating effectively.
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27.	 Extract of Annual Return:
The extract of Annual Return u/s 134 (3)(a) and u/s 92 (3) read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management 

and Administration) Rules, 2014 in Form MGT-9 is attached to the Report as Annexure IV.
As per the requirement of section 134 (3) (a) , the Annual Return referred to Section 92 (3) for the year 

2019 will be uploaded on www.sintercom.co.in, once filed with the ROC. 

28.	 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments:
The Company has not given any loan or guarantee or security or made investment under Section 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year. 

29.	 Particulars of Related Party Transactions:
During the year under review, contract or arrangements entered into with related party as defined under 

Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 were in ordinary course of business on arm’s length basis. 

Details pursuant to the transactions to compliance of section 134(3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Rule 8 (2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are annexed herewith as per prescribed Form AOC-2 

-Annexure V. 

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with 

Related Party Transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s website.

30. 	 Internal Financial Control System:
The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate internal financial control systems which ensures 

that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are authorized, recorded and 

reported correctly. The Company’s internal financial control system also comprises due compliances with 

Company’s policies and Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s), supplemented by internal audits from 

Internal Auditors.

31.	 Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition and 
Redressal), Act 2013:
As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 a committee called Internal Complaints Committee has been established to provide 

a mechanism to redress grievances pertaining to sexual harassment at workplace and Gender Equality 

of working women. During the year Company has not received any complaint pursuant to the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

32.	 Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower:
The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy through a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal 

mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or 

suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for 

adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides 

for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company 

have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy is disclosed on website of the Company at www.sintercom.co.in

33.	 Fraud Reporting:
There was no fraud disclosed during current Financial Year.

34.	 Non Disqualification of Directors: 
All the directors of the Company are non- disqualified and certificate for the same from the Practicing 

Company Secretary in annexed as Annexure VII.



35.	 Policy of preservation of Documents:
Pursuant to the Regulation 9 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 the Company has maintained the policy of preservation 

of documents to keep the documents preserve as per Regulation 9 (a) & 9 (b) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 and 

the same has been uploaded on the website of the Company on www.sintercom.co.in 

36.	 Details of significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals:
There were no significant and material orders issued against the Company by any regulating authority or 

court or tribunal that could affect the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

37.	 Cost Records:
The Company is not required to maintain costs records as specified by the Central Government under sub-

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

38.	 Credit Rating:
The credit rating from CRISIL during the financial year 2018-19 for bank facilities are CRISIL BBB for Long 

term and CRISIL A3+ for the short term. The rating has been revised from CARE BB to CARE A4.

39.	 Statement fo deviation or variation:
There is no deviation in the use of proceeds from the objects stated in the offer document of IPO and 

Preferential allotment and there is no variation between projected utilisation of funds made by it in its 

offer document of IPO and Preferential allotment pursuant to regulation 32 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements, 2015. The Board hereby confirm the entire utilization of the proceeds as 

stated above.

40.	 Registrar and Share transfer Agent Information:
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

Block No. 202, 2nd Floor, Akshay Complex,

Near Ganesh Temple, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune – 411001

Tel: 020 - 2616 1629 / 2616 0084   Fax: 020 - 2616 3503

Email: pune@linkintime.co.in Website: https://www.linkintime.co.in

41.	 Event Based Disclosures:
The Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights or Sweat Equity shares or shares 

under ESOP. The Company has not provided any money to its employees for purchase of its own shares 

hence the company has nothing report in respect of Rule 4(4), Rule (13), Rule 12(9) and Rule 16 of the 

Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014.

42.	 Acknowledgements:
Your directors would like to place on record their appreciation and gratitude for the support to the 

Company received from the Employees, Clients, Customers and Shareholders of the Company for their 

trust and patronage, as well as to the Bankers, Securities and Exchange Board of India, National Stock 

Exchange, Government of India and other Regulatory Authorities for their continued co-operation, support 

and guidance. 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
SINTERCOM INDIA LIMITED

Hari Nair

Chairman

Place: Pune

Date:10 th May, 2019
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ECONOMIC OVERVIEW:
India became the sixth largest economy by sustaining growth rates higher than China, thereby earning the 

epaulette of being the fastest growing major economy in the world.

After a strong growth in 2017 and the first half of 2018, the economic activity slowed down notably in the 

second half of the financial year.  Fiscal 2018-19 belied expectations for most. For a period, which started 

with strong belief of robust economic growth ended on sub-optimal performance with GDP growth slid 

to 6.81 per cent in 2018-19.

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) reduced India’s GDP growth forecast for 2019-20. They projected 

growth to pick up to 7.5 per cent in 2020, supported by the continued recovery of investment and robust 

consumption amid a more expansionary stance of monetary policy and some expected impetus from 

fiscal policy.

India’s labour force is expected to touch 160-170 million by 2020, based on rate of population growth, 

increased labour force participation, and higher education enrolment, among other factors, according to 

a study by ASSOCHAM and Thought Arbitrage Research Institute. (source: ibef)

Some of the key initiatives taken by the Government of India are:
•	 The National Mineral Policy 2019, National Electronics Policy 2019 and Faster Adoption and 

Manufacturing of (Hybrid) and Electric Vehicles (FAME II) have also been approved by the Government 

of India in 2019.

•	 In February 2019, the Government of India approved the National Policy on Software Products – 2019, 

to develop the country as a software hub.

•	 India’s Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) equity inflows reached US$ 409.15 billion between April 2000 

and December 2018, with maximum contribution from services, computer software and hardware, 

telecommunications, construction, trading and automobiles.

•	 Prime Minister’s Employment Generation Programme (PMEGP) will be continued with an outlay of Rs 

5,500 crore (US$ 755.36 million) for three years from 2017-18 to 2019-20, according to the Cabinet 

Committee on Economic Affairs (CCEA).

Management Discussion and 
Analysis ReportAnnexure I



SECTOR OVERVIEW: 
The automobile industry in India is world’s fourth largest, with the country currently being the world’s 4th 

largest manufacturer of cars and 7th largest manufacturer of commercial vehicles in 2018. 

The industry produced a total 30.91 million vehicles including passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, 

three wheelers, two wheelers and quadricycle in April-March 2019 as against 29.09 million in April-March 

2018, registering a growth of 6.26 percent over the same period last year. Two-wheelers dominate the 

industry and made up 81 per cent share in the domestic automobile sales in FY19.

 

The sale of Passenger Vehicles grew by 2.70 percent in April-March 2019 over the same period last year. 

Within the Passenger Vehicles, the sales of Passenger Cars, Utility Vehicle & Vans grew by 2.05 percent, 

2.08 percent and 13.10 percent respectively in April-March 2019 over the same period last year. The overall 

Commercial Vehicles segment registered a growth of 17.55 percent in April- March 2019 as compared to 

the same period last year. Medium & Heavy Commercial Vehicles (M&HCVs) increased by 14.66 percent and 

Light Commercial Vehicles grew by 19.46 percent in April-March 2019 over the same period last year.

Three Wheelers sales increased by 10.27 percent in April-March 2019 over the same period last year. Within 

the Three Wheelers, Passenger Carrier sales registered a growth of 10.62 percent and Goods Carrier grew 

by 8.75 percent in April-March 2019 over April-March 2018.

 

Two Wheelers sales registered a growth at 4.86 percent in April-March 2019 over April-March 2018. Within 

the Two Wheelers segment, Scooters declined by (-) 0.27 percent, whereas Motorcycles and Mopeds grew 

by 7.76 percent and 2.41 percent respectively in April-March 2019 over April-March 2018.

 

In April-March 2019, overall automobile exports grew by 14.50 percent. While Passenger Vehicles exports 

declined by (-) 9.64 percent, Commercial Vehicles, Three Wheelers and Two Wheelers registered a growth 

of 3.17 percent, 49.00 percent and 16.55 percent respectively in April-March 2019 over the same period last 

year.

COMPANY AND PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW: 
Your Company mainly caters to the domestic OEM buyers in automotive segment like Maruti Suzuki Limited, 

Mahindra & Mahindra Limited, Bajaj Auto Limited and Fiat India Automobiles Private Limited.  We have an 

in-house dedicated Research & Development team and have been developing new products in engines, 

transmission systems and body chassis for OEMs and Tier-1 customers. The main product line of the 

Company is manufacturing of high strength structural sintered components of Engine and Transmissions. 

One of our Body Corporate Promoter, MIBA Sinter Holding GmbH & CO KG, which is part of MIBA group, 

has track record of more than five decades in sintered technology.

For the financial year 2018-2019, your Company recorded net sales of Rs. 832 million as against Rs. 746.2 

million in the previous year and thereby recorded growth of 11.36% in the net sales. Despite the headwinds 

faced by the auto ancillary industry, Company was able to achieve double digit growth during the financial 

year.

For the financial year 2018-2019, the Company achieved Profit before tax of Rs. 76.39 million as against Rs. 

65.95 million for previous financial year and thereby recording a growth of 15.83%. Inspite of the challenging 

times in the second half of the financial year 2018-2019, the company has been able to maintain its profit 

margins. 
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SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE:
The Company works only in one segment i.e. manufacturing of sintered auto components.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 2018) 
(AMENDMENT) REGULATIONS, 2018, THE COMPANY IS REQUIRED TO GIVE DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT 
CHANGES (CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL 
YEAR) IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

	 Sr. No	 Key Financial Ratios	 2019	 2018

	    1	 Inventory Turnover	 1.88	 2.16	

	    2	 Return on Net worth	 7%	 9%

The changes in Inventory Turnover Ratio are due to drop in customers schedule due to overall slowdown 

in the auto sector. Other than this change, these is no material change of more than 25% in other ratios.

MANAGERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING 
NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED: 
The Company believes and recognizes that its employees are important resource in its growth and to give 

competitive advantage in the present business scenario. The Company takes pride in the commitment, 

competence and dedication shown by its employees in all areas. The Company has always worked to 

give opportunity to its people irrespective of their education background at shop floor. Subordinates 

mentoring and responsible candidature goes a long way in ensuring company’s success.

Professional with required amount of experience and knowledge are hired on need to need basis by 

the Company. The Industrial relation of the Company with various clients, supplier, financial lenders and 

employees is cordial. There are total 95 employees on the payroll of the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT:
The Company has followed all the treatments in the Financial Statements as per the prescribed Accounting 

Standards.

NOTE:
For sake of brevity the items covered in Board’s Report are not repeated in the Management Discussion 

and Analysis Report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Certain Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objectives, 

projections, estimates and expectation or predictions may be forward looking statements within 

the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. It cannot be guaranteed that these assumptions and 

expectations are accurate or will be realized.  Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. 

Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions 

affecting demand/supply and price conditions in the domestic markets, changes in the Government 

Regulations, tax laws and other statues and incidental factors.



PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3) (Q) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Annexure II
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Secretarial Audit ReportAnnexure III

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2019

To,

The Members,

Sintercom India Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Sintercom India Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Sintercom India Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby 

report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 

31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 

the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;



ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 2018 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings;

v.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

	 a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;

	 b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

	 c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable) 

	 d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable) 

	 e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; (Not Applicable) 

	 f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

	 g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

(Not Applicable)

	 h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not 

Applicable) and; 

	 i.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. (As per Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR, Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 and 

clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E Schedule V are not 

applicable to the Company) 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

•	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

COMPANIES ACT, 2013
As per section 117(3)(g) and 179(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has failed to file the 

resolution passed by the Board of directors of the Company, for approval Boards Report in the form 

MGT-14 with Registrar of Companies.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS (SS)
The Company has not disclosed in its Director’s Report for the period under the review, as to whether it has 

complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards and to that extent the Company has failed to comply 

with Clause 9 of SS-1 – Secretarial Standard on Meetings of Board of Directors. 

We further report that subject to our observations:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 

of the Act

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously. As per the records 

available in the said minutes there were no dissenting views expressed by any director in the meetings. 

We further report that the systems and processes in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines need further improvement considering the size and 

operations of the Company.

The company has duly filled the E-Forms with the Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

except for a few instances, where the forms were filed beyond prescribed time with payment of additional 

fees. 

The remuneration withdrawn by the Managing Director of the Company for FY 18-19, is in excess of the 

limits specified in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and schedules framed thereunder; 

but within the limits approved by the shareholders at the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 27th 

December 2017. As informed by the Management, necessary waiver for refund of excess remuneration 

amounting to Rs. 13,94,272/- Is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

We further report that during the audit period:
During the audit period the company has not initiated any actions such as Public/Right/Preferential issue 

of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc., Redemption / buy-back of securities, decisions taken by the 

members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013, Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, 

etc and Foreign technical collaborations having a major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of 

the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For KANJ & Co. LLP Company Secretaries

Sunil Nanal
Designated Partner 

CP. No: 2809 

M. No: 5977

Date: 10th May, 2019

Place: Pune



Annexure IV
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* Mr. Markus Hofer, Non Independent Director and Ms. Gopi Trivedi, Non Executive Independent Director 

resigned from the Board w.e.f. 20th August, 2018.
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(xi) PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES - NIL
There were no penalties, punishment, compounding of offences for the year ending 31st March, 2019.



Annexure V
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Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

A.	 Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

	 1. 	 The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of the Company is approved by the Board 

of Directors on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

B. 	 Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors

	 Non-Executive Directors of a Company’s Board of Directors add substantial value to the 

Company through their contribution to the Management of the Company. In addition they also 

play an appropriate control role. For best utilizing the Non-Executive Directors, the Company has 

constituted certain Committees of the Board.

	 Remuneration payable:

	   SR No	 Nature of Meeting	 Sitting Fee (Amount in INR)

	       1.	 Board Meeting	 25,000 (Per Meeting per Director)

	       2.	 Committee Meeting	 25,000 (Per Meeting per Director)

C. 	 Remuneration Policy for Senior Managers including Key Managerial Personnel

	 1.	 The Company while deciding the remuneration package of the senior management members 

takes into consideration the employment scenario and remuneration package of the managerial 

talent of other comparable industries.

	 2.	 The remuneration to Senior Management employees comprises of two broad terms – Fixed 

Remuneration and Variable remuneration in the form of performance incentive.

	 3.	 Remuneration of Senior Management members and other employees in the management cadre 

largely consists of basic remuneration, perquisites, allowances and performance incentives. 

Annexure VI



The components of remuneration vary for different employee grades and are governed by 

industry patterns, qualifications and experience of the employee, responsibilities handled 

his/her individual performance etc. The annual variable pay of senior managers is linked to 

the Company’s performance, the performance of the respective divisions/ functions they are 

attached to and their individual performance for the relevant year is measured against specific 

major performance areas which are closely aligned to the Company’s objectives.

	 4.	 The performance incentive is based on internally developed detailed performance related 

matrix which is verified by the HR department.

	 5.	 Annual increase in fixed remuneration is reviewed and then approved by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.
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CERTIFICATE ON NON-DISQUALIFICATIONS OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

Annexure VII

To,
The Members of
SINTERCOM INDIA LIMITED 
Gat no.127, At Post Mangrul,
Taluka Maval, Talegaon Dabhade
Pune - 410507.

We have examined the relevant records, registers, forms, returns and disclosures received from 

Sintercom India Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Company”) and made available to us for the 

purpose of issuing this Certificate. In accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C 

Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we hereby certify that: 

None of the following Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 

appointed or continuing as directors of the Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

or the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other statutory authority, for the period commencing from 

1st April 2018 to 31st March 2019: 

  Sr. No.	               Name of Director		                                DIN	                 

	   1.	 Hari Narayan Nair	 00471889	

	   2.	 Jignesh Vasantrai Raval	 01591000	

	   3.	 Harald Neubert	 03446380	

	   4.	 Madan Madhusudan Godse	 06987767	

	   5.	 Preeti Anil Ramdasi	 07976863	

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

matters based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 

the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company.

For KANJ & CO. LLP, Company Secretaries

CS Sunil Nanal
Designated Partner

Membership No. 5977

CP No. 2809

Date: 10 / 05 / 2019                           

Place: Pune



REPORT ON CORPORATE 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITYAnnexure VIII

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed 

to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs

Focus areas:
The Company supports various bodies in carrying out activities in the areas of rural development, 

education, health care, general semantics etc.

CSR Objectives:
To attain its CSR objectives in a professional and integrated manner, the main objectives are:

	 1.	 To promote, carry out, support activities relating to: Education and Training including Science 

and Technology, Humanities; Healthcare; Welfare of Children, Women, Senior Citizens, and 

Differently Abled Persons; Employment enhancing Vocational skills; Sanitation; Water 

management; Agriculture; Horticulture; promotion of Culture; Art & Craft; Conservation of 

Natural Resources; Promotion and development of traditional Arts & Handicrafts; Employment 

Generation; Environment Sustainability; Science & Technology; Rural Development; Animal 

Welfare; welfare and development measures towards reducing inequalities faced by Socially 

and Economically Backward groups; and such activities may include establishing, supporting 

and / or granting aid to institutions engaged in any of the activities referred to above.

	 2.	 To conduct and support studies & research; 

	

	 3.	 To promote, carry out, support any activities covered in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 

2013, as amended from time to time.

In the financial year 2018-19, the Company has undertaken activities relating to Promoting Healthcare 

and Rural development. 

Web-Link to the CSR Policy:
http://www.sintercom.co.in/pdf/corporate-policies/csr-policy.pdf

2.	 The Composition of the CSR Committee as on 31st March 2019 is as follows:	

	 Ms. Preeti Ramdasi 

	 Mr. Hari Nair           

	 Mr. Jignesh Raval

	 Mr. Harald Neubert
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3.	 Average net profit of the Company (calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013) for 

last three financial years: 

	        Year	 Amount  (In Million)

	    FY 2015-16	 Rs. 8.49 Million

	    FY 2016-17	 Rs. 21.37 Million

	    FY 2017-18	 Rs. 65.91 Million

	 The average net profit before tax: Rs. 31.93 Million 

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 0.64 Million

5.	 Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

	 a.	 Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 0.84 Million

	 b.	 Amount unspent, if any - Rs. 0.64 Million

	 c.	 Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

6. 	 In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last 

three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending 

the amount in its Board Report:

	 Sintercom considers social responsibility as an integral part of its business activities and endeavors 

to utilize allocable CSR budget for the benefit of society.

	 Sintercom CSR initiatives are on the focus areas approved by the Board benefitting the community. 

However, the Company is exploring new avenues for CSR and would be utilizing remaining funds 

in the next financial year.

7.	 Responsibility statement: 

	 The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of Company’s CSR Policy, 

is in compliance with CSR objectives and CSR Policy of the Company.



We, Jignesh Raval, Managing Director and Pankaj Bhatawadekar, Chief Financial Officer Sintercom 

India Limited (“the Company”) to the best of our knowledge and belief, certifiy that:

A.	 We have reviewed the financial statements for the year 01st April, 2018 to 31st March, 2019 and to 

the best of our knowledge and belief:

	 1.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading;

	 2.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

B.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed 

entity during the year i.e. April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of 

the Company’s code of conduct.

C.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and that we have evalued the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining 

to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies 

in the design or operation of such internal contorols, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 

we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D.	 We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

	 1.	 significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year i.e. 01st April, 

2018 to 31st March, 2019;

	 2.	 significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements;

	 3.	 instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal 

control system over financial reporting;

	 Jignesh Raval		  Pankaj Bhatawadekar
	 Managing Director		  Chief Financial Officer

Managing Director and 
Chief Financial Officer Certification
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Independent 
Auditors’ Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF 
SINTERCOM INDIA LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sintercom India Limited (“the Company”), 

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement 

of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit and the cash flows 

for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 

under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 

in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 



audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 

of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to 

communicate in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 

Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our 

auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated.  

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 

position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting 

Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 

the preparation and presentation of the  financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 



SINTERCOM INDIA LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 65

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.  

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

 

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

 

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 

statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 

identified misstatements in the financial statements.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,  



related safeguards.

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 

be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 

	 a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

 

	 b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books.  

 

	 c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts.  

 

	 d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 

	 e.	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

	 f.	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

 

	 g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 

provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

	 h.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 

	 i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 

	     its financial statements.  

 

	 ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, 
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	      for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.  

 

	 iii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

	      Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  

 

2.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters 

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Parag Pansare
Partner

Membership No.: 117309

Pune, May 10, 2019



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report to the Members of SINTERCOM INDIA LIMITED of even date) 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sintercom India Limited (“the 

Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company 

for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
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assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 

control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 

of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 

material effect on the financial statements. 

 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 

the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 

has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 

internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Parag Pansare
Partner

Membership No.: 117309

Pune, May 10, 2019



ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report to the Members of SINTERCOM INDIA LIMITED of even date.

i.	 In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:  

 

	 a)	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of fixed assets.  

	 b)	 The Company has a policy of verifying all the Fixed Assets once in three years, which is reasonable 

having regard to the size of the Company and nature of is fixed assets. As explained to us, physical 

verification has not been carried out during the year.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the 

Company.

ii.	 As informed to us, the physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management 

at reasonable intervals and the discrepancies noticed during such physical verification were not 

material. Stocks lying with third parties at the year-end have been confirmed.

	 The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of Inventory as compared to the book records 

have been properly dealt with in the Books of Accounts.

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 

Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

given loans, made investments or given guarantees which are covered by the provisions of Section 

185 and 186 of the Act. 

v.	 The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits 

as at March 31, 2019 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable 

to the Company.

vi.	 The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under Sub-Section (1) of Section 

148 of the Act and we are of the opinion that prima facie such accounts and records are made 

and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to 

determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

  

	 a)	 The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, 

Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.  
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	 b)	 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, 

Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears 

as at March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts of Excise Duty, 

Customs Duty, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Income Tax and Provident fund which have not been 

deposited as at March 31, 2019 on account of dispute.

 

viii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions, banks and government and 

dues to debenture holders.

ix.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken by 

the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised. The Company had not 

raised money by way of further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

x.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company 

by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 

provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.  

xii.	 The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company.  

xiii.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in 

compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions 

with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial 

statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  

xiv.	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 

or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company.

                                                                                                                                             

xv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company 

has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors 

and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.  

xvi	 The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No.105215W/W100057

Parag Pansare
Partner

Membership No.: 117309

Pune, May 10, 2019
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1.	 General Information :	  	  	  
 	

	 Sintercom India Limited is engaged in manufacturing of sintered metal components and auto 

components. The Company is into manufacture of various auto components required in various 

automobile applications and is supplying to various Auto Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEM’s). 

The Company has its manufacturing plant in Talegaon Dabhade.

 	  

2.	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies :	  	  	  

 	  	  	  	  

2.1	 Basis of preparation of financial statements -	  	  	  
 	 The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on 

the accrual basis of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India, (‘ICAI’) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013. 

Accounting policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent with the generally accepted 

accounting principles.

 	  

	 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of 

assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements.  

Actual results may differ from those estimates. Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 

prospectively in current and future periods.

 	  

 2.2	  Inventories -	  	  	  
 	 Stock of Raw materials, finished goods, and work in progress, packing material, tools & spares, stores 

& consumables and goods in transit are valued at cost or realizable value whichever is less. Cost is 

arrived at on FIFO basis .

 	  

 2.3	  Property, Plant & Equipment -	  	  	  
 	 Property, plant & equipment are stated at original cost net of accumulated depreciation and 

impairment loss, if any except for free hold land which is carried at revalued amount based on the 

report from Government approved valuer. The cost of the property, plant & equipment includes the 

Notes to the  
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purchase price and the incidental or directly attributable expenses incurred in bringing the asset to 

its working condition for its intended use.

	 The Company has adopted cost model to measure the gross carrying amount of property, plant & 

equipment.	  	  

	 Gains and Losses arising from disposal of the property, plant & equipment which are carried at cost 

are recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

 	  

	 The Company identifies and determines the cost of each component / part of the asset separately, if 

component / part have a cost which is significant to the total cost of asset and has useful life that is 

materially different from that of the remaining asset.

  	  

	 Spares and Parts which are in Inventory and which meet the definition of Property, Plant and 

Equipment, such items are accounted for in accordance with the AS10, Property, Plant and Equipment.

 	  

	 Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount 

substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of 

property, plant and equipment as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, as assessed 

by the management of the Company based on technical evaluation except in the case of following 

assets:

2.4	 Intangible assets -	 	  	   	
	 Development costs of some new sintered technology applications are capitalized considering the 

certainty of economic benefits likely to arise from the same over a long period. The said capitalized 

costs are amortized for the purpose of depreciation / impairment over a period based on the 

management estimates which are considered as  per the expected useful product life of the intangible 

asset.  Cost of development of the intangible assets consists of material cost, manpower cost, plant 

overheads and depreciation on machinery. The expected useful product life of each intangible asset 

is re-assessed on yearly basis.

 	  

2.5	 Depreciation -	  	  	  
	 Pursuant to Companies Act 2013, being effective from April 01,2014, the Company has provided 

depreciation as per provisions of Schedule II & Management estimates as applicable. Depreciation on 

property, plant & equipments added / disposed off during the year has been provided on pro–rata 

basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal.

 	

2.6	 Revenue Recognition -	  	  	  

	 Revenue (Income) from sales of product is recognized when risk and rewards of ownership are 

passed on to the customers, which generally coincide with the dispatch of goods. Sales are stated on 

net basis i.e. exclusive of VAT, Excise Duty and  GST.
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 2.7	  Foreign Currency Transactions -	  	  	  
 	  Recording:-
	 Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at original rates of exchanges in force at the time when 

the transactions are effected.

 	  

	 Realization / Payment:-	  	  	  
 	 Exchange differences arising on realization / payment of foreign exchange during the year are 

accounted in the relevant year as income or expense.

 	  

	 Year end adjustment:-	  	  	  
 	 Foreign exchange difference on monetary items unrealized / outstanding as on year end date is 

quantified as per year end exchange rates or forward rate agreement as applicable and are charged 

to Profit & Loss account.

 	  

	 Hedging:-
	 In respect of Forward Exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risks, the difference 

between the forward rate and exchange rate at the inception of the contract is recognized as income 

or expense over the life of the contract. Further, the exchange differences arising on such contracts 

are recognised as income or expense along with the exchange differences on the underlying assets/

liabilities. Further, in case of other contracts with committed exchange rates, the underlying is 

accounted at the rate so committed. Profit or loss on cancellations/renewals of forward contracts is 

recognised during the year.

2.8	 Retirement and other employee Benefits -	 	  	  
	 The Company contributes towards Provident Fund, Family Pension fund which are defined contribution 

schemes. Contribution expenses are recognized as an expense in the Profit and loss account in the 

year in which the contribution is due. The Company has a policy of accounting gratuity on actuarial 

basis & leave encashment liability on actual basis.

2.9	 Borrowing Cost -
	 Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 

assets are capitalized as a part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to 

the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

 	  

 2.10	Related Party Transactions -
	 Related parties under clause 3 of the Accounting Standard 18 issued by ICAI have been identified on 

the basis of representations made by key managerial personnel and Information available with the 

Company.

 	  

2.11	 Earnings per share -	  	  	  
  	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period 

after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period for all periods presented is adjusted 

for events, such as bonus shares, other than conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed 



the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in the resources. For the 

purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to 

the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 

is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.12	 Taxes on Income -	  	  	  
	 Income-tax comprises of current tax and deferred tax (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences 

between accounting income and taxable income for the period). Deferred tax assets are recognised 

only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that they will be realised in future; however, where 

there is unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets 

are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are 

reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is 

reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

 	  

2.13	 Impairment of assets -	  	  	
	 In accordance with (AS-28) – Impairment of Assets, the carrying amounts of the Company’s assets 

including intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any 

indication of impairment.  If any such indications exist, the assets recoverable amount is estimated, as 

the higher of the net selling price and the value in use.  An impairment loss is recognized whenever 

the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  If at the 

balance sheet date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, 

the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is assessed at the recoverable amount subject to 

a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

 	

2.14	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities -	  	  	  
	 Provision is recognized in the Balance sheet when, the Company has a present obligation as a result 

of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.  A disclosure by 

way of a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 

may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.  Where there is a possible obligation or a 

present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is 

made. These estimates are reviewed at each Balance-Sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best 

estimates.

 

	 A Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past event(s) whose existence will be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the entity. It also includes a present obligation that is not recognised as it 

is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable 

estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Accordingly, the Company does not 

recognise a contingent liablity but discloses obligation the existence of a contigent liability when 

there is a possible obligation or present obligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow 

of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the 

likelihood outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

 	

2.15	 Other Income -	  	  	  
 	 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding 

and the rate applicable

 	  

	 Income from export incentive schemes is recognised on as accrual basis.	
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2.16	 Cash and Cash Equivalents -	  	  	  
 	 In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, demand deposits with 

banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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COMMITTED TO THE SOCIETY
THROUGH MEANINGFUL DUTIES

Thorough 
medical 
check-up of 
students at
Zila Parishad 
School, 
Mangrul
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The members of the Sintercom 
family visited a school in 
Mangrul village and volunteered 
to paint the school’s building, in 
order to make the students feel 
proud about their school.



Notes
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